Mare 7. Edell, Esq.

N.J. Attorney ID. No. 018401975

107 Fawnridge Drive

Long Valley, N.J. 07853

(908) 500-7801

Attorney for Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills at
Rockaway Condominium Association, Inc.

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY

PAUL KARDOS : CHANCERY DIVISION MORRIS COUNTY
: GENERAL EQUITY
DOCKET NO.: MRS-C-000102-18
Plaintiff,
Civil Action
-vs_
FOX HILLS AT ROCKAWAY : AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM, JURY

CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.: DEMAND AND CERTIFICATIONS

Defendants.

AMENDED COUNTERCLAIM

The Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills at Rockaway Condominium Association, Inc., by

way of Amended Counterclaim against the Plaintiff, Paul Kardos, says:

1. In December 2017, the Fox Hills at Rockaway Condominium Association, Inc. (the
"Association") filed a complaint (the "Complaint") against the Paul Kardos (“Kardos™) and
two (2) other members of the Association in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Morris
County Chancery Division, bearing Docket No. C-130-17 (the "Litigation"). Annexed
hereto as “Exhibit A”.

2. In January 2018, the Kardos filed a counterclaim against the Association (the
"Counterclaim") in the Litigation. Annexed hereto as “Exhibit B”.

3. The Association and Kardos agreed to amend the entered into a Settlement and Release
Agreement ("Agreement") effective April 25, 2018. Annexed hereto as “Exhibit C”.
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Thereafter, at Kardos’ request, he and the Association agreed to an Amendment to the
Agreement (deleting its Confidentiality Provision) effective July 6, 2018. Annexed hereto
as “Exhibit D”.

Kardos voluntarily executed the Agreement, without any duress or undue influence on the
part of, or on behalf of the Association.

Kardos® Counsel, Mr. Gary Moylen, Esq. (hereinafter “Mr. Moylen™) represented him in
the negotiations and the contents of the Agreement and the Amendment of the Agreement.
Kardos read and fully understood the rights he relinquished, and the obligations required of
him under The Agreement prior to executing same.

Mt. Moylen fully explained to Kardos the rights he relinquished, and the obligations
required of him under the Agreement, prior to executing the Agreement.

In consideration of terms of the Agreement and to avoid the cost, delay and uncertainty of
further litigation, Kardos desired to compromise and resolve and/or seftle the Complaint
and Counterclaim under the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement.

In consideration of the facts, the Mutual Releases and promises contained in the
Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which Kardos acknowledged, he voluntarily agreed and promised to comply to the terms
and obligations contained in the Agreement.

Despite the fact that Kardos was well aware of the Dublirer decision as far back as
September 25, 2016 (sec “Exhibit E” annexed hereto), at no time during the negotiation of
the Agreement did Kardos or his Counsel], Mr. Moylen, request, offer or otherwise attempt
to include language in the Agreement that would preserve his Constitutional right of I'ree
Speech that he relinquished under the terms of the Agreement.

On May 15, 2018, Mr. Moylen was advised by email (annexed hereto as “Exhibit F”) that
Kardos® proposed “Flyer”, attached to the email (and annexed hereto as “Exhibit G”] (1}
violates the Confidential Settlement Agreement; (2) If what he states in the Flyer accurately
reflects your representation and legal advice (a) he has waived the attorney client privilege;
(b} you were negligent in so counseling him since you have not seen all of the Applicable
Confidential Settlement Agreements in this matter and; (c) if you advised him that he could
not bring a claim for defamation because the offensive statements were protected by

Litigation Immunity, but, because, in his words you are nothing more than a “hired gun”,
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and are willing “to do whatever [he] wants™ [see Kardos May 10, 2018 email, annexed
hereto as “Exhibit H], you violated the RPCs by including the defamation claim in his
Counterclaim, knowingly it was brought in bad faith; and (d) your client lied in the Flyer
that he did not bring a claim for defamation.

On May 16, 2018, Mr. Moylen conveyed the above to Kardos as well as the elaboration of
reasons why the proposed Flyer violated the Agreement as articulated by the Association’s
Counsel in a telephone call with Mr. Moylen on May 15, 2018, (see “Exhibit I” annexed
hereto).

Paragraph 4. of the Agreement states, inter alia,: “Except for the obligations and rights
expressly set forth elsewhere herein, the ... Owner [Kardos] hereby unconditionally and
irrevocably remise [give up, surrender relinquish], release, forever discharge ...past,
present and future directors, officers (whether acting in such capacity or
individually).. .attorneys. .. acting or purporting to act for them [“the Association”] or on
their behalf (collectively, the "Releasees"), from any and all claims, ...costs, losses,
expenses, ...accounts, reckonings. ..charges, complaints, controversies, disputes, ...
promises, omissions, duties, agreements, rights, and any and all demands, obligations
and liabilities, of whatever kind or character, direct or indirect, whether known or
unknown or capable of being known up until the Effective Date, arising at law or in equity,
by right of action or otherwise, including, but not limited to facts that arose from or are
related to the facts and circumstances giving rise to and/or being part of the Litigation, the

Complaint and/or the Counterclaim.”

Kardos RELINQUISHED all rights, of whatever kind or character, he would otherwise
have, arising at law or in equity, by right of action or otherwise, including but not limited
io (1) to making claims, charges, complaints of any kind; (2) to creating controversies and
disputes; (3) to demand information and answers to questions; and (4) to make assertions
the Board and Attorney violated its duties and obligations, that relate in any way, but not
limited to, facts that arose from or relating directly or indirectly, to the facts and
circumstances giving rise to and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the
Counterclaim.

Kardos® “Flyer™ (1) makes claims, charges and complaints; (2) creates controversies

and disputes; (3) demands information and answers to questions; and (4) asserts the
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Board and Attorney violated their duties and obligation, all of which relate in some way,
but not limited to, facts that arose from or relating directly or indirectly, to the facts and
circumstances giving rise to and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the
Counterclaim. Therefore, Kardos® “Flyer” breaches the Agreement.

Kardos’ May 12, 2018 email, (annexed bereto as “Exhibit I””) sent to some forty
individuals (1) makes c¢laims, charges and complaints; (2) creates controversies and
disputes; (3) demands information and answers to questions; and (4) asserts the Board
and Attorney violated their duties and obligations, all of which relate in some way, but not
limited to, facts that arose from or relating directly or indirectly, to the facts and
circumstances giving rise to and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the
Counterclaim. Therefore, Kardos® May 12, 2018 email breaches the Agreement.

Kardos’ May 9, 2018 email, (annexed hereto as “Exhibit K™) sent to some forty
individuals (1) makes claims, charges and complaints; (2) creates controversies and
disputes; (3) demands information and answers to questions; and (4) asserts the Board
violated its duties and obligations, all of which relate in some way, but not limited to, facts
that arose from or relating directly or indirectly, to the facts and circumstances giving rise
to and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the Counterclaim. Therefore,
Kardos’ May 9, 2018 email breaches the Agreement.

Count One of Kardos’ Complaint in this matter breaches the Agreement because it seeks to
require the Association to post his “Flyer” the content of which breaches the Agreement,
for the reasons specifically set forth in paragraphs 14, 15, 16, 17 and 18 of this Amended

Counterclaim.

. Despite Kardos being well informed the Association’s decision not to post his “Flyer” was

primarily based upon the fact that it violated the Agreement before he filed his complaint
on September 20, 2018, (see Exhibits F, ] and Kardos’ May 18, 2019 “Flyer Dispute
Complaint” annexed hereto as “Exhibit L” wherein he states in paragraph 3. “The flyer
deemed not acceptable had been the subject of email correspondence between Paul Kardos'
attorney Gary Moylen, and the association attorney Marc Edell.”) as well as after he filed
his Complaint, (see e.g., communication dated May 22, 2019 annexed hereto as “Exhibit
M), he makes no reference to this in his Complaint nor his proposed Amended

Complaint.



21. Paragraph 4. Of the Agreement provides: “In consideration for entering into this
Settlement and Release Agreement, the Plaintiff and Defendant/Counterclaimant
"unconditionally and irrevocably...covenant[s] not to sue [the Association} from any and
all claims, counterclaims, actions, causes of actions, suits, set offs, costs, losses, expenses,
sums of money, accounts, reckonings, debts, charges, complaints, controversies, disputes,
damages, judgments, executions, promises, omissions, duties, agreements, rights, and any
and all demands, obligations and liabilities of whatever kind or character, direct or indirect,
whether known or unknown or capable of being known up until the Effective Date arising
at law or in equity by right of action or otherwise, including but not limited to, facts that
arose from or are related to the facts and circumstances giving rise to/or being part of the
Litigation, the Complaint and/or the Counterclaim." Therefore, the filing Count One of the
Complaint is a breach of the Agreement.

22. As a result of the Plaintiff’s, Paul Kardos' breach of the Settlement and Release
Agreement, the Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills at Rockaway Condominium
Association, Inc., has been damaged and otherwise harmed.

WHEREFORE, Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills at Rockaway Condominium

Association, Inc., demands judgment against Plaintiff, Paul Kardos, for an order dismissing

Count One of Plaintiff’s Complaint, damages, attorney's fees, costs of suit and such other relief

as this Court deems appropriate and equitable.

DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to Rule 4:25-4, MARC Z. EDELL, ESQ., is hereby

Dated: May 15, 2019 lﬁarc ’ﬁdellVEsq.

designated as Trial Counsel on the Amended Counterclaim.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the defendant/counterclaimant, Fox Hills at Rockaway

Condominium Association, Inc., hereby demands a trial of the issues by a jury of six.

Marc Z. Edell, ESQ. Aitorney for Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills at Rockaway



Condominium Association, Inc.
By: / /

Dated: May 15, 2019 : }aﬁr‘é Z. Edell, Esq.

CERTIFICATION
I hereby certify that a copy of the within document has been filed with the Clerk of the above-

captioned Court and that a copy of same was served upon Paul Kardos, Pro Se and George

Karousatos, Esq. within the time allowed by the Rules of Court, as extended.

MARC Z. EDELL, ESQ.
Attorney for Defendant/
at Rockaway Con

terclaimant, Fox Hills
inium Association, Inc.

By:
Dated: May 15, 2019 Marec Z. Kdefi, Esq.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 4:5-1

1. The matter in controversy is the subject of a pending action or Atbitration as
follows: UNKNOWN
2. Contemplation of another action or arbitration proceeding is contemplated as

follows: UNKNOWN

3. The following parties listed should be joined in this action: UNKNOWN

I CERTIFY THAT the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if
any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

MARC Z. EDELL, ESQ.
Attorney for Defendant/Counterclaimant, Fox Hills
at Rockaway Condomini sociation, Inc.

By: /

Dated: May 15, 2019 Mafe Z. Eddl, Esq.
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David I, Byroe, Fequire
NJ Attorney 1d Na, 415191954

AIRSELL GRIMM & AARONP.C,
214 Camegie Centes, Suife 1132
Princeton, New Jassy 08340
6027515551
Attorneys for Plamtiff, Fox Hills at Rockaway Copdominiom Assopiation, Ing,
FOX HILLS AT ROCKAWAY .
CONDGMINTUN ASSOCIATION, INC SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
' PUCATIENANE 1 cHaNCERY DIVEION
Platmif, MORRTS COUNTY
v DoakniNa-:Cx/ﬁ.{fj*’/? -
: Civil Actios
BARBARA APRPLEBAUM, PAUL
KARDOS & ALAN ROTHSTEIN,
YERIFIED COMPLALNT
Deferrdants.

Plaintif, Fox Hills at Rockeway Condominfum Assoclation, Ine, %“Aﬁocie;tinn“) by way of
verifisd complait against defendants, Barbers Appeibanm, Paul Kardos & Alan Rothsieln (eollectively,
*Orwhers™r herehy aﬂagrsé the Tillowing:

1. The Associaflon is & New Jemsey condominfom created by virme of New Jersey’s
Condomintror Aoty and opergted, | part, pirsnant fo Newy Jersey’s Non-Profit Corparations Ael. In
conjunction therewith, the Association's origlnal master deed was recorded December 24, 1998, in desd
Boaje 4RFR, Page 207, in the Office of #& Monis County Clerk {the *Master Deed”).

2 Rarbira Appichaurn is the owner of 3210 Prankiin Lans, # unit sitstad in the Assosfation,
Pagl Kardos is the owner of 204 Cloveland Lage, 2 wndt situdted i the Associstion. Alsn Rothsteln fs

the gwnerof 1101 Pranklin Lane, & unit sitnated in-the Assdaiztion,
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3. On Wedneaday, December 6%, the Owners engaged in an online, emall commmunieation,
involving, at Jeast 25 other Association tesidents and/or owners, regarding the results of the Association's
recent annuel meeting and Board of Directors (the “Board”™) election. |

4, During the course of that communication, the Owners conspired to “shoot” a retently
glected member of the Boand; cutrently the Bowed's president, Ms. Glotia Stahl. Paul Kardos assemsbled
the Owners, along with others whio he believed might be willing o partiqipaia it his corrspiracy, and to
participats in the actual shooting,

s, Onoe the Owners, and their friends (and possfb!e co-couspirators) were enpaged in this
communication, Barbara Applebaum suggested to sveryons that they “shoot” the Board’s president.

6. Alm Rotuicin ageed, saggesting »s well fhat the Board's president be shot
Additionaily, he solicited volustesrs to trave] to Viegindn for the purpose of buying & gun, for nse in
shooting and/or killing the Board’s president. |

7. Alan Rothstein rharacterized M. Applebanm’s suggestion as a “smart” suggestion, He
added that the Board’s president is erogent aod nasty, unworthy of respect, He let the Owners and the
potential co-conspiretors know that be would buy 2 gun and “cull the trigger™ ifhe thought that he could
get away with it,

8, As = long-time licensed atforney, Alan Rothstein has the knowledge and skill to plen &
ucder dn such a way as 1o avold being thwarted prior to the murder and/or avoid arrest after the murder,

9, Upon information and belief, the Owners” canspiracy-related comummications and efforts
continued after the end of that pariculas cnling communication.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AS TO THE OWNERS

10,  Puragraph (8) of the Master Deed prohibits any “poxious, hazardo‘us, ot pffensive
acfivities™ in upor the Association's comrmon clements and/or within any of the Association’s units, This

paragraph frther profifbits any owner from doing amything “either willfully or neglipently which may

2
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become an annoyance or & nuisaace o the other rosidents or which interfores with the peaceful possession
and proper tise of the” Association’s common elements and/or anits, Lastly, paragreph (8) mandates that
every uwner obsarve all *“valid laws” (a tue copy of this part of the Master Deed is attached a5 “Bxhibit
A”,

11,  The Master Dead’s paragraph (11} provides that each unit owner znd/or unit oecupsnt
“shall be governed by and shall comply with”™ is terms, and “fis exbibifs inclading the By-Laws", See,

Exhibit A,

12, Article X of the Association’s By-Laws (the "By-Laws™ provides that every awner must

“strictly” comply with the “By-Laws .....and the covepants and restrictions in the Masier Deed” (a trae
copy of this part of the By-Laws Is attached as “Exhibit B”),

13,  Artiele X provides as well that if an owner has been found by & cowrt “io have commitizd
the vialation complained of, the” owner “shall reimburse the Association for reasonable attomey’s fees
and such ofher cosls as shall be established by the Cowrt™ See, Exhibit B,

WHEREFORF, the Associaion demands a judgment against the Owners, jointly and seversily,
as follows: (1) adjudging them fo have violated the Mastor Deed and By-Laws; (i) prokdbiting the
Owners from faking any additonal actions in fortherance of their conspiracy fo muxder the Board's
president; (Hi) ordertng tisat the Owners remain not less than 100 feet away from Ms, Gloria Stabl, Mr,
Peter Forman, Ms. Eleanor Himt, Me. Counle Kelly, Me. Jay Amdur, Ms, Barrie Werftl and Ms, Bonnie
Cohen, as the Association’s tanagiug ageni(s) pending firther otder of the court; {fv) in an amount equal
to those reasonable atforneys® fees and costs incured by the Assoctation 2s a result of the Owners’
violation of the Master Dead and/or By-Laws; and, (v) providing such other relief as this court deems

just and equitable,
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Asnsel] Grimm & Amon, PC
Attomeys for Plainiff” Bay Hills

| AR T RO 0
Dated: 12 [(3{17 (E"

DESIGNATION OF TRYAL COUNSEL

Parsmpni fo B 4:5-1(), David 1. Byrae, Bsquirs {s hereby desigrmted as trial soonse] for

e Bbove-captioned matfer,
Ansell Gomm & Awon, P.C.
Atiomeys for Plaintif, Fox Hills
2t Rockaway Condomimtum Ass i,
By: : -
DAVID I BYRNRS BSQUIRE
Datedc 11221 ] U

CERTINICATION

Pirsusnt fo B, £:5-1(B)2), it is hereby siated that to the best of my kriawledpe end bolief

the fssyed and/or ficts aised Sepein are thesmubjsct of 0o acffor pending f any oher Court. To

the Best of my knowledge and belief, no other aclon or arbitmtion proseeding s conterplated.
Purther, c;ﬂm thum the patlios o Toih indhis plesding snd the presious pleadings, if any, af the
present time we know of mo other partss that should be joined i the within action.

Anself Grimm & Aaron, P.C.

Attorneys for Platafiff, Fox 15
at Rockewsy Condominim

- By N
. DAV T, aww
Dated: 131317 .
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CERTIFICATION

Pursuast o Rule 4:5-1(5)(3), the widersipned certifies that comfidential personal
{dentifiers have been redapied fint doctinents now sibmitied fo the Court and will be redacted
From all dobuments subinited in the Fotare with ascordartee with Rule 1:38-7(53 '

Aneell Grirom & Asmon, PC )

Dated: 121317

e L .

A —
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Gary Wio. Moylen, Esq.

N.J. Attorney ID. No. 0178615978

S0 Maple Avems

Winmistowa, New Jersey 17560
(573) 535-1303

Atiomeys for Defendant Patl Kardos

FOX HILLS AT ROCKAWAY
CONDOMINIUM ASSCCIATION, INC,

Plaintiff,
V.

T BARBARA APPLEBAUM, PAUL
KARDOS AND ALAN ROTHESTEIN

Defendmnis.

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY-
CHANCERY DIVISION - MORRIS COUNTY
CIVIL ACTION .
Docket No., £-130-17

ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM
OF DEFENDANT PAUL KARDOS

DEFENDANT PAUL KARDOS, residing in the Borough of Rockaway, Cousty of

Wiorris and State of New Jersey, by way of answer to the Plaintiffs Complaint, states as follows:

1. This Defendant admits the allegations set foith in Paragraph | of the Complaint.

2. This Defendant admits the allegations sef forth in Paragraph 2 of the Complaint.

3. This Defendent admits the allegations set forth in Pamgraph 3 of the Complaint

#. This Defendant denfes the allegations set forth in Paragraph 4 of the Cormplaint.

5. This Defendant denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph 5 of the Complaint.

6.  This Defendant demries the allegations set forth in Paragraph 6 of the Complaint.

7. This Defendant denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph 7 of the Complaiat.

8 This Defendent denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph § of the Complaint.

.9 This Defendant denies the allegations set forth i Paragraph 9 of the Complaint.



10, This Defendant peither admits nor denies the ailegations of Paregraph 10 of the
Complaint, and keeves the Plaintiff fo Its proois. ‘

11.  Tis Defendant nefther admits nor denfes the altegafions of Pﬁmgraph 11 ofthe
Complein, end Jeaves the Plaintiff o s proofs.

12,  This Defendant neither admits nor denfes the allegations of Paragraph 12 of the
Complaint, aid leaves the Plaintiff fo iis proofs, '

13.  This Defendart nefther admits nor denies the allegations of Paregraph 13 of the

Compleint, snd leaves the Plaintiff to its proefs.

WHEREFORE, Defendent Panl Kasdos deends judgrment ageinst Plaintitf as follows:
(&  Dismissing &e Verifisd Complaint with prejndice;
()  Awmrding this Defendant counsel foes for the vosts of opposisg this
frivoloas Verified Complaint

(€)  For such other relief as the Court deems equitable and just

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Plaintiff Iacks stending to bring this matten,

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

" The Verified Complaint fails to state a canse of action upen which relief can be
graated.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

This action fails to tnchude an indispensable party.

o



FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Verified Complairt fails to state any facts necessary for the Cowrt to grant
injunctive relief

FIFTH _AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The within lawsuit constitutes frivolons Htigation fn viclation of R. 1:4-8 and
N8 A2A15-59.1.

COUNTERCLATM
FIRST COUNT

Desfcn&aﬁtl Plaintiff on the Counterclaim Paul Kurdos, by way of Counterclaim
agminst the Plaintiff Fox IH, states as follows:

14.  Paul Kardos is zm individnal who, at all pertinent times, was an owger infecina ‘
real estate condorminium knowm as “Fox Fills at Rockaway Condominium Association, Inc.”
(heremafter known as “Fox Hills™) focated in Rockaway, New Jersey. |

15.  Due tohis ownership of a condominfum jn the Fox Hill project, Paul Kardos is
avtomatically a member of the Fox Hill Condominium Assocdation, znd as such, he hes standing
to assert the rights and cleims set. forth in this Cowrterclaim,

16,  Fox Hills has wtilized the assets of the condomintum association fo pay the Jegal
foes of counsel who has prepared and filed the within Verified Complaint and Order to Show
cause, and which represents Fox Hills in the within litigation.

17.  The Verified Complaint filed in this muatter is fifvolous on its face, and consists of
nothing more than frivolons liffgation which, among other things, iraproperly asserts the rights of

2 third person not made 4 pacty to this action, faiis to join m indispetsable party, fails to



artrieniate the grounds necessary forthe Issuzncs of injunctive relief, and which fails to even
properly staie a canse of action upon which relief can be pramted.

18,  Even if somehow one conld discern a viabie camse of action in this metter, Fox
Hiliz is notthe proper party to asserts those ights, and i fact is impropetly representing the
rights of an individual, Gloria Stahl, &t this action.

19,  The Plaintiff's payment of counse! fees in this mafter constitrfes &wast'ecfﬂne
Association’s funds in favor of one mersber of the Association, and discriminates against otber
7 memibers of the Association, In violation of Pox Hifl's fiduciary duties and ifs responsibilities
orestod by iz Miaster Doad and by the law of fhe State of New Jersey.

WHEREFORE, Paul Kardos demends Judgment agatnst Fos Fills:
A,  Adudgingthat Fox Hills has viofated its fiduciery dufies to repiesent the interests
of a1t members of the Association equally and fiirly;

B. Adiudging that Fox Hills has improperly wasted the assets of the Association in

paying the comsel fees in this matter; |

C. Brjointog znd forbidding Fox Hills from using any more funds of the Association

1o pay counsel fees in this action; |

D, Directing and ordering Fox Hillsto collect from Gloria Stahl all commsel fees

paid to date in this mafter to finther her interests; “

E. Oxdering =nd directing Fox Hills to pay the counsel fees of Paul Kardos in

defending this matfer, and

F. For such other relief as the Court deems equitable and just.



SECOND COUNT

70.  Paul Kardos repeats and rejterates the allegatiors of the First Count of the
Counterelaim as i the same were set forth at longfl herein.
21.  Fox Hiils through its counsel has falsely wcase:d Paﬁ Ka;rdos, emong oihets, of
crime of copspiracy ta cormmit murder, '
23.  The aforeszid allegations ars false, and were known to be false at the fime they
7 wers made and are lipelous per se.
74,  The sforesatd false allegations were made with 8 malicions intent to demage the
good reputation of Pan! Kardos, and to kold I:um in contempt as 8 criminal,
35.  These false allegations have cansed economic and non-economic damages to Paul
Kardos.
WHEREFORE, Paul Kardos demands judgment for defamation against Fox Hill for:
A.  Nominal damagss;
B. Compensatory Damages;
Pumitive Damages; |

Counsel fees and cogts of suit and

moogo o

Such other and firther relief as the Court deems equitable and just.

gﬂ# %r/

Dated: January 18,2018 GARY WM. MOYLEN, ESQ.
Astornenfor Defendant Paul Kardos




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO R.4:5-1

i 15 herebyy stuted that the matter in controversy is not the sulject of ey other action.
pending in any Court or of a pending arbitration proceeding fo the best of my kmwl&dée or
belief, Mo other action or arbitration proceeding is mﬁhamplaﬁei Further, other than the parties
sex forth in this pleading, Iknow of no other parties that sheuldba joined in the above action. In

; additiom, [ recognize the c:onhmnn: obligation of each parLy to file and serve on all parfies and
the Conrt an amended Certification if there is a change in the facts stated in this originel
certification.

%ﬁm

Dated: January 18, 2018 MOYLEN, ESQ.
Atta or Defendent Payl Kardos

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO R.1:38-7(c) AND R. 4:5-1(h)(3)
I hereby certify that confidential personal identifiers have been redacted ffom,

documcm"s now gubmitted to the Court, and will be redacied from all docurnents submitted

in the fetare in accordance with Rule 1:38-7(b).

Do E¥L)

Dated: January 18, 2018 MOYLEN, HSQ.
Attc}m v for Defendant Pan! Kardos




DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL

Pursuant fo R.4:25-4, Gary W, Moyien, Esq., is hereby designated as trial counsel
for Defendant Panl Kardos in the within matter,
d o

Detod: Tamary 13, 2018 TARY WML, MOYLER ESQ.
Attomef £0r Defendant Panl Kardos




EXHIBIT C



A, _Pam'es

This Confidential Settlement and Relgase Agrecment (“Agreeanenf’) is made and entered
into. as of the last day set forth on the signature page (* Effective Date™) by arid between Fox Hills &t
Rorkaway Condominium Association, Inc. (the “Associafion™ and Paul Kardos (“Otwner) (each
mdividually, a “Party, and Eellectively, the “Parties” or “Seitling Parties™) Tor the purposs; of

resolving, By comprormse and settlement, all claitns, controversies aod alleged liabilities arising out:
of th facts and circurnstances as gt forth below.

B. Recitals

The Agreement is e:niexed ittquz_i%th refé:rénce to the following facts:

1. In Decémber, 2017, the Association fled 2 complaint (the “COmplamt") against the:
Ovwnper- aid t¥o (2) other members of the Association: i the Superior Court of New Jersey, Morris
County Chancery Division, bearing Docket No. C-130-17 {the “Litigation™).

2. In Janua::y 2018, the Ovmer ﬁled £ t;ountcrc“fann against the Associafion (ﬁ;e
“Coutterclaim™) in the Litigation.

3 T consideration of the mutuzl egreerhents contained herein, -and to avoid the cost;.
delay and unhcerfainty of furfier htaganen, the Parfies desire to. compromise and resolve and/or
settle the Complaintand Counterciaim tinder the terms-and conditions set forth herein.

C. Agreements, Releases and Provhises

In consideration of the facts and gerieral reélésses and protuises contained herein, and for
other good and-yahusble consideration; the receipt atid sufficiedey of which is ackrmwledged by

cach Party, thé Patties acknowledge the accuracy of the Recitals sef forttr above and promise:and.
agres Bs foﬂows

1. Settlemerit. Nat later than April 27, 2018, the Associafion shell pay in-the form of
an instrument payable to Gary” Wm Moylen, commse]. for the Owner, the som of $1,500 (the-
Gtsetlernent Sﬁm’”)

2. Stipidation of Dismistal. Simuffaneousty with the execufion of this Agreement,
the Parties shall &xecite the Stipulation of Dismiss, ‘attached hereto.as Exhibit A, which shall be
held in, escrow by Spector &- Ehre.nworfh P c., counSe[ for the Assocmtton Upon cc;nﬁrmaimn

and serve the executed’ S‘upulanon of Dlsmssal mthe Lmvahon

3. Confidentiality, The Parties. represent, wartant.:and. agree that ‘the ‘terms and
contents of the Agrebmént, and. th négotiating the Agreement (collectively, the. “Confidential
Inifo™), including, withowt- 11mrt.ai:on, the: fact that any foney 1s to be, or was, paid by the




Association to the Owner, are and, shall be treated as confidential and shall pot bé disclosed, in
any way used or desciibed of chiracterized to aity dther pesson'or eitity ‘except as follows:

a. The Parties can disclose the term§ and conditions hereof to enforce the terms
of the Agreement. In such event; the disclosing Parfy shall disclose those
portions 6ftbe'Ag§ﬁcment only as necessary for such enforcement,

b. The Parties further agree. that they shall not in any way-make the Confidential
Info piblic and agree’ that fie Agretment is fo be read, disciissed and/or
disciosed only t6-the: Parties, their authorized represenitatives, affiliates and
parcnt entifies, attorneys, euditors, tax preparets, bankers, accountants;
investors, underwriters, insupers, reinsurers, and insurante brokers, except ag
tnay be required to fulfill & Party’s obligations set by order of 2 court of
competent furisdiction. I a Party Tecelves a subpoena or other reqguest
sesking a copy of the Agreemient, or the disclosure of the térms heteof, that
Party shall, to the exterit permitted by law, notify the-other Parfes in writing
that the subpogna or other request Was received, and that Party shall cooperate
with any of the other Parties with regard to any desire to object to or fo limit
the scope of the subpoena or request..

¢, ‘The Parties shall advise anyons to. whom such, information js disglosed that
such information shall be treated confidentially.

d. By way of clarification, because the .Assotiation is 2 corporation. that is 4
séparate legal entity from it imdividual homebwners, the individual
homeowners -are pot 4. party to this agreement and the Patties shall not
disclose the Confidéntial Info to the individual homeowsers,

4. Mutidl Release of the Association and the Owner: Exeept for the obligations and
fights expressly set forth elséwhere héreid, the -Associatfon and the. Owner heréby
unconditionally and irevocably remise; release, forever diséhatge and covenant not to siie doe
another and all entities. relted to thém; and each of their past, Tresent and fufure directors, -
officers (whether acting T such cdpacity or indiyidually), sharehelders, qwners, pattiers, joint
venturers, principals, trustees, creditors, atiorneys, representatives, erpployees, managers;
parents, subsididties, divisions, subdivisions, departménts, affiliates, predecessars, stipcessors,
Heirs ‘and assigns, or sny agent acting or purperting to act for théd of én therr behialf
{collectively, the:“Releasees™), from any and all claims, counterclaims, actions, causes of action,
suits, sef-0ffs, costs, lossés, expenses, sums of money, accounts, reckomings, debts, charges,
complaints, controversies, disputes, damages, judgments, execntions; promises; omissions;
dutles, agresments; rights, and any ‘and all demends, obligations and lisbilities, of whatever kind
or charactsr; divect or indirect, Whether, kinowen of unkngwn or capable. of beifig kiown ip antl
e Riffective Date, arising atJew or in equity; By right of action or otherwise, including; but not
limited o fasts:that atose from dr:are related to the facts and circumstances giving rise to and/or
being part of the Litigation, the Complaint arid/or the Counterclaim.

Page.2 of 4



5. Release, Limiiations. The Agreement does not release:” (1) tlaims adsing out of
thie fhilare of ay Party to perfortn in conformity with the terms oF the Agreement and (2) ansr
fisture dispuites between ‘Owner and/or fhe Absocidtion with respeét to thefr condominfum/owaer
relationship.

B Choice of Law. The Agresment is entered inic and raade I the State of New
Jersey. '

7. Construction of Agpreement. The Agreement shall be coristriéd. as-a whole:
according to its fair.meaning and as if all Parties jointly prepared it Any \ihcertaihty or
amblgmty inthe A greenent shall not be Smcﬂy interpreted ot construed against any Party.

2. No Oral Modification. The Agreement shall not be altered, amended, or modified
by oral representation made befare or after the execution of the Apreement, All modifications.
must be in Wwriting and duly execnted by all Parties.

9. Represéntations,. Indemnifications. The Parties represent and warrant to &ach,
‘other that, each is. the sole and lawfiil owner of all right, title and-interest in and to every claim
and other matter which each releases berein and thet they hiave not previously asmgned or
tramisferred, or purported to do 50; to any person or cther eptity any right, title or'intersst in dny
such claifn,or otfier matter. Ih ‘the event that such reprcsanta:tlon is false and any,such claim or
smatter is asserted against either Party By ahyone who is the as*.;ignee or transferee ofsucha. claim
or matter, then the Party who éssigred or transferred such claim of matter shall fully indemnify,
deferid and hold harmless the Phrty against whom such claitn or matter, i§ asserted and ifs
successors from. and. against such claim. or matter and from ‘all -actual costs, attorbeys’ fees,

expenses, liabilities and daprages which that Party and its successors incur 28 & tesult of the.
assertion of such élaim or matter.

10. Knpowing and Voluntarv Assent, The Parfies acknowledgé that the Agreement.is
executed voluntarity by-each of them, without any doress or ¥ndue influence on the part” of, or'on
behalf of, any of them. The Parties further acknowledge that they have had-the opportunity for
representation in the nego‘aatwns for, and in the. performancp of, the Agreement by counsel of
their choice and that they Hisve read the Agrebment and/or have had it fully explained to'them by
their counsel and-that they are fully. aware of the:contents Fereofand the contents’ legal effect.

i11.  Pinal and Binding Agreement The Parfies acknowledge that the Agresment
supersedes all pnor and contempotatieous agreements between the Parties regerding the subject
matter hereof, is & full and final accord énd satisfactiori and shall be binding upon. and jopte to-
the benefit of the Parties and themr tespettive heirs, executots, administrafers, agents,
representatives, successors, and agsiggs.

13, Countérparts énd Pacsimilé Sienatiwes. "The Agreéiment may be executed in any
number of counterparts and with facsimile signatires, and all such counterparts shall be
construed together and copstitute a sihgle form of the Agxeement.
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13. Headmgs and Captions. The headings and captions inserted itito the Agreement
are for convenience only and in no way define, lmit or otherwise describe. the scopé or mtent of
the Apgresmeht, or 20y provision hereof, ‘ot in any way affect thé interpretation of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have cansed this document fo be executed
ag of the last day. set forth below.

Date; %/ﬁé/// 5 FOXHILLS ATROCKAWAY CONDOMINTUM
’ ! ASSOClA’ITGN INC.
By
(Eeria_ (575)?/
(prmt name)
1 _JResiJont Jox /s
{prmt title)
Date: Aprl 1%, 2015 PAULKARDOS
" Pani Kardos
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EXHIBIT D



AMERDMENT TO SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, a Setiement and Release Agreement ("Agreement”) entered into as of the
last day set forth on the signature page of that Agreement ("Effective Date") by and
between Fox Hills at Rockaway Condominium Association, inc. {the "Assogiation”) and
Paul Kardos ("Owner) {each individually, a "Parly,” and collectively, the "Parties™ or
"Setifing Parties™ for the purpose of resolving, by compromise and settlement, all
dlzims, confroversies and afleged labilfies arising ol of the facts and circurnstances as
set forth thersin.

WHEREAS, the "Parties” have agreed to amend the aforesald “Agreement”

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and among the Parties, in

consideration of the mufual covenants and undertakings set forth in the “"Agresment’, fo
amerid the aforesald “Agreement” as Tollows:

1. Effective as of the last day set forth on the signature page of this "AMENDMENT TO
SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENT” ("Effective Date”) the following
provision of the “Agresment”, as set forth fully below, be and the same is hereby
deleted:

3. Confidentiality. The Parfies represernt, warrant and agree thatf the
terms and contents of the Agreement, and in negofiating the Agreement
{collectively, the "Confidential info®), including, without limitation, the fact
that any money is to be, orwas, paid by the Association o the Owner, are
and shall be freated as confidential and shall not be disclosed, in any way

used or described or characterized to any other person or entify exceptas
Tollows:

a. The Parfies can disclese the terms and canditions hereof to enforce the
terms.of the Agreement. In such event; the disclesing Parly shall disclose
those portions of the Agresment only as necessary for such enforcement.

b. The Parties further agree that they shall not in any way make the
Confidential info pubfic and agree that the Agreement is to be read,
discussed andfor disclosed only to the Parties, their authorized
representatives, affiliates and parent entities, attomeys, audifors, fax
preparers, bankers, accountants, invesiors, underwriters, insurers,
reinsurers, and insurance brokers, except as may be required to uffilt a
Parly's cbligations set by order of a court of competent jutisdiction. If
Party receives a subpoena or other request seeking a copy of the
Agresment, or the disclosure of the ferms hereof, that Party shall, fo the
extent permitted by law, notify the other Parties in writing that the :
subpoena or other request was received, and that Parly shall cooperate
with any of the other Parties with regard fo any desire fo object fo or to
limit the scope of the subpoena or request.
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c. The Parties shall advise anyone fo whom such information Is disclosed

that such informafion shall be freated cophdentially.

d. By way of dlarificafion, because the Association Is a corporation that s a
separate legal entity from its Individual homeowners, the individuai
homeowners are not a parly to this agreement and the Parties shall not
disclose the Confidential info fo the individual homeowners.

2. All other provisions of the “Agreement” shall remain in fufl force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parfies hereto have caused this document to be executed
as of the last day set forth below.

Date: w

Date; 7{ :32 e

oy Fasl Lardore—"

Paul Kardos

MEN
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EXHIBIT E



From: Paul Kardos <pkardosi@yahoo.com>
To: Lynn Meekins <lmeekins@taylormgt.com>
Sent: Sunday, September 25, 2016 10:37 PM
Subject: Dublirer Decision Summary

Lynn

Please forward this to the board along with my request for a place to post poiitical
notices.

The entire NJ Supreme Court opinion on the Dublirer case is quite interesting;

hitp://caselaw.findiaw.com/nj-supreme-court/1685374.htmi

However, for those of us with limited time or interest, the following exiracts relate the
gist of the opinion,

A resident... asked the Board if he could distribute campaign materials in the
building. The Board, citing a “House Rule” that barred soliciting and distributing any
written materials, denied the request. The resident filed a lawsuit and claimed that the
House Rule was unconstitutional.

The House Rule reads as follows: There shall be no solicitation or distribution of any
wriften materials anywhere upon the premises without authorization of the Board of
Directors... A bulletin board for resident’s use is provided in the rear lobby.

The appellate panel ... struck the House Rule on free speech grounds. The panel
noted that Dublirers expressional activity was “political-like speech” because it refated fo
the managernent and governance of the common-interest community. The panel found
that the restriction left Dublirer without reasonable alfernate means fo convey his
message.

Even though Dublirer did not run for public-office, his message was akin-to and should
be treated as political speech, which is entitled to the highest level of protection in our
society.

The Board can adopt reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions to serve the
community inferest.... For example, it could reasonably limit the number of written
materials that an apartment dweller can distribute in a given period.

The Board allows itself to distribute materials throughout the complex, but jts critics
cannof do so. As the excerpts in the record reveal, parts of the Boards updates praise
its achievements and harshly crificize its opponents. But the Board prohibits detractors
from answering in the same manner.

Nothing in our case law permits a group in power to attack its opponents yet bar them
from responding in the same way.



We therefore find that the Board’s House Rule violates the free speech guarantee in
New Jersey’s Constitution.

Chief Justice Rabner delivered the opinion of the Court.

Note that the “bulletin board in the rear lobby” available fo Dublirer was found by the

court to be unsatisfactory for the free speech requirement. We at Fox Hills don't even
have that.

Regards,

Paul Kardos



EXHIBIT K



Lynn Meekins

From: Marc Edell <medell@edell-law.net>

Sent: Tuesday, May 15, 2018 1:11 PM

To: 'gmoylen@gmail.com’

Cc Lynn Meekins

Subject: Violation of Settlement Agreement, Libel and much more
Attachments: Kardos Fiyer,pdf

| called you as a courtesy yesterday but | did not receive a return call. This is to advise that (1) your
client has violated the Confidential Settlement Agreement; (2) If what he states in the attached Flyer
accurately reflects your representation and legal advice (a) he has waived the attorney client
privilege; (b) you were negligent in so counseling him since | assume you have not seen all of the
Applicable Confidential Settlement Agreements in this matter and; (c) if you advised him that he could
not bring a ciaim for defamation because the offensive statement was protected by Litigation
Immunity(see attached), but, because in his words you are nothing more than a “hired gun”, and were
willing “to’ do whatever [he] wants”, you violated the RPCs by including the defamation claim
knowingly it was brought in bad faith (ask your client for his May 10" email); (d) your client fies when
he states in the Flyer that he did not bring a claim for defamation, you included the claim in his
Counterclaim; (&) in his May 10, 2018 email, your client's baseless disparaging remarks regarding my
conduct as Fox Hill's attorney are Libel per se. Please advise whether you will be representing him in
that regard or whether | can communicate with him directly.

Finally, | am happy to discuss any of the issues presented herein if you would like. You might like fo
remind him that he accepted $1,500 for releasing all claims against my client that were or could have
been made in this matter including the defamation claim he lies about in his Flyer. Further, given his
waiver of the attorney client privilege, and his many lies, and the significant legal fees attributable to
his misconduct changes the analysis of his recent request to eliminate the Confidentiality Provision in
his settlement agreement.

In any event, it is crucial that you inform me if you continue to represent Kardos and the scope of the
representation. If 1 do not have a response to this question by 5:00 PM, | will assume you no longer
represent him in any capacity and therefore | may contact him directly.

Thank you,
Marc Edeli

(908)500-7801



EXHIBIT G



The opinions of the author do not necessarily reflect the opinions of
the Board. However, in accordance with the First Amendment
(Freedom of Speech) this document is being distributed

The litigation (Fox Hills vs. Applebaum, Kardos & Rothstein) started with a
lie and now ends with a lie.

Starting Lie:
Paragraph 4 in the Verified Complaint:

"During the course of that communication, the Owners conspired fo “shoot” a recently elected member
of the Board; currently the Board's president, Ms. Gloria Stahl, Paul Kardos assembled the Owners,
along with others who he believed might be willing to participate in his conspiracy, and to participate in
the actual shooting.”
This is pure fantasy. In my mind it is akin to deliberate perjury. But [ was unable fo
claim defamation due to a legal principle called Litigation Immunity. Deliberate fies are
allowed in legal pleadings.

| would like to know who wrote this lie. | would like to know who on the board, besides
secretary Cohen who signed for it, acquiesced to this lie. Ifany board member objected
to this lie, I'd like to know who it was. They should be commended for knowing if's
wrong to falsely accuse someone of a crime.

Ending lie:
The board posted a notice dated May 10, 2018 stating:
"We have been advised by Council thaf the Agreements preclude the Board from providing any
additional information regarding this matter”.
According to my attorney the contents of the Seftlement Agreement are confidential,
BUT anvthing else about the litigation can be discussed!l! The board statement is
ancther lie.

Questions:

The following questions have nothing to do with settlement agreements and should be

able to be answered by the board:

What lessons were learmned from this frivolous litigation?

What was the tota! cost of the litigation to homeowners?

Why is David J. Byrne, Esg. no longer the association's attorney?

Was any attorney or settlement money paid-for by insurance?

Was any settiement money paid for by David J. Byrne, Esq.?

Did the attomey encourage the Board to pursue this lawsuit, or did the Board

convince him?

Attorneys do not come cheap. Would any of the board members contribute

toward attorney costs of the defendants? How about $500 per director?

8. Do you think the board owes an apology to the defendants for the frivolous
litigation and the false report filed with the police department?

9. Do you think the board owes an apology to the homeowners of Fox Hills?

Do hLN=

™~

Paul Kardos

5/13/18




EXHIBIT H



Lynn Meekins

From: ALAN RCTHSTEIN <abrock@optimum.net>
Sent Thursday, May 10, 2018 7:56 PM

To: Paul Kardos; Lynn Meekins

Subject: RE: Queations for board

Not so. While the settlement is confidential there is no reason the bd cannot tell us who
voted in favor of the suit, what were the grounds for starting the suit, how much did the
bd pay Byrne to draw the papers and start the suit etc. Pienty of questions that have
nothing to do with the settlement. The settlement is completely separate from the
commencement of the suit. It is a cop out by the bd. On Thu, May 10, 2018 at 04:37
PM, Paul Kardos wrote:

Well, the board set a date to discuss docket C-130-17 litigation - it's the 12rh of never
(attached).

This is baloney. My attorney would give me options, advise his recommendation, and
then ask me what I wanted tc do. I was in charge. The attorney is the hired gun and
will do whatever you, his client, want:

This is ANOTHER case of ;

1. board tells attorney what to say,

2. the attorney says it,

3. the board quotes the attorney as the final authority.

What happened to the committee to improve board communications?

- PK

—— Forwarded Message —
From: Barbara <baumappl@aol.com>

To: "pkardos1@yahoo.com” <pkardost@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 11:40:48 PM EDT

Subject: Re: Decument page count

Just some suggestions and additions off the top of my head.....

| would efiminate #2 and #3.

Instead of referring to paragraph this and that or email this and that, | would go into a little detail as to what you are
talking about

#8 - How about including all of us.

#9 - How about including all of us.

Was the settlement to Paul and Al paid by Fox Hills or Mr, Byme?

#7 - Were all 7 Board Members in favor of pursuing this lawsuit right from the beginning?

i



Did the attomey encourage the Beard fo pursue this lawsLit, or did the Board work to convince him?
Why did we change attorneys? It had to have something to do with the lawsuit against us.
How much did this end up costing the residents here? Do you think this [awsuit was in the best interest of Fox Hills? '

Do you still feel, as was stated at the Townhall Meeting, that the attorney works for all of us and if a resident (not a Board
member), had a simiiar situation, the atiorney would defend that person? If the answer is yes, and the attorney
represents alt of us, how would the atiorney decide which person to defend? (confiict of interest).

——Original Message—
. From: Paul Kardos <pkardosi{@yahoo.com>

To: Barbara <baumappli@aol.com>
Sent Wed, May 9, 2018 6:32 pm

. Subject Re: Document page count

Yes, I'm working on some guestions, like;

i. To board: Can we remove the "confidential® part of my Settlement Agreement? It's
certainly ok with me.

2. To each director; Do you promise to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but
the truth?

3. Do you know the difference between right and wrong?

4. Do you think it's right or wrong to accuse someone of a crime that you know the
person didn't commit?

5. Does my statement on the email of Dec. 6 sound at all like "assembling owners to
conspire to murder the board pres.”? (paragraph 4 of Verified Complaint)

6. When I was served with the Verified Complaint on Dec. 6, were you aware of this
statement was in the Verified Complaint? '

7. Did you help write the statement in paragraph 4, or acquiesce to it? Did you or
anyone object to it? - ,

8. Do you think you owe me an apology? How about for the false accusation that you
filed in the police report '

9, My attorney charged $5000 for his services. Would.you like to make a contribution
toward this cost? Heow about $500 pér director?

Before my questions, someone else should ask if the board will be answering all
questions.

Can you think of any more questions?

Paul



EXHIBIT 1



Re: Violation of Settlement Agreement, Libel and much more

From: Gary Moylen (gmoylen@gmail.com)

To:  medell@edeli-aw.net

Beo  pkardosi@yahoo.com

Date: Wednesday, May 16, 2018, 10:16 AM ECT

Good morning Matc,

This is to confirm our telephone conference yesterday regarding the Fox Hill matter. I
have emailed my client regarding your concerns, and await his response.

Tn the meantime, I reviewed the Settlement Agreement as well as Mr. Katdos' proposed
fiyer, My tesponses to yout concems listed in yout email, without having spoken to my
client, ate as follows:

1. 1don't see how Mt. Kardos' Flyer violates the Settlement Agreement. The
Agreement states in pertinent part that the parties "... agree that the tetms and contents
of the Agreement, and ... the fact that any money is to be, or was, paid by the
Association to the Ownet, ate and shall be treated as confidential and shall not be
disclosed, in any way used ot descsibed...." Nowhere in Mr. Kardos' Flyer ate the terms
of the settlement or the fact that money was paid disclosed. He seems to raise what
appeat to be serious and legitimate questions about the allegations made in the lawsuit,
2nd the propriety of the allegations in the lawsuit. The Seitlernent Agreement does not
prohibit discussions about the allegations made in the Verfied Complaint ot the other
issues he raises such as the cost to the Association in tetmns of legal fees. If there is a
provision of the Agreement that you contend states otherwise, I would be happy to
review it.

2. Assuming you ate correct that Mr. Kardos may have waived the attorney-client
ptivilege, which I do not necessatily agree with, what are the televance of such watver?
Why does it mattet?

3, How have I been negligent in counseling my client, and how does that redound to
your benefit? What standing do you or yout client have to even raise the issue? Who was
hatrmed by such "negligence'?

4. Your criicism of Mt. Kardos and his comments about defamation attributes to
him 2 knowledge of the law and litigation that he does not have.

5. Idon't have Mr. Kardos' May 10 email, and so cannot comment on it



6. The fact that Mr. Kardos released all claims he might have against yout client
atising out of this lawsuit, does not mean that he can't openly discuss it. Quite frankly,
the Verified Complatnt filed in this matter included outrageous and almost ndiculous
claims that makes one wonder about the mental state of those involved in deafting and
filing it. The zllegations of 2 "conspitacy to commit mutdet" - alleged with a straight face
in formal pleadings that appatently arose in the context of discussions about issues
concetning this Board makes one wonder. And having alleged such a conspiracy to
commit murder, seeking only relief in the terms of an order to keep a certain feet away
from the object of the conspiracy are beyond tudicrous, and wotthy of 2 good laugh.

I think Mr. Kardos is certainly justified in asking who participated in approving such
an outrageous lawsuit, 2nd in inquiring exactly what relief they were really seeking, I can
see it legitimately being an issue in any upcoming elections for the Board. Likewise, his
inquiries into how much this chatade cost the Association ia tetms of legal fees is
justified, and not prohibited in the Settlement Agreement.

In closing, this entite mattet seems to be a tempest in a teacup, and T don't see the
justification of all the huffing and puffing going on. In any event, I am awaiting Mr.
Kazrdos' tesponse , and will advise you as soon as T have it.

Regards

On Tue, May 15, 2018 at 1:11 PM, Marc Edell <medell@edellHaw.net> wrote:

| called you as a courtesy yesterday but | did not receive a return call. This is o advise
" that (1) your client has violated the Confidential Setilement Agreement; {2) If what he
states in the attached Flyer accurately reflects your representation and legal advice
(a) he has waived the attorney client privilege; (b) you were negligent in so counseling
‘him since | assume you have not seen all of the Applicable Confidential Seftlement
" Agreements in this matter and; (c) if you advised him that he could not bring a claim
. for defamation because the offensive statement was protected by Litigation
" Immunity(see attached), but, because in his words you are nothing more than a "hired
- gun”, and were willing “to do whatever [he] wants”, you violated the RPCs by including
the defamation claim knowingly it was brought in bad faith (ask your client for his May

10t email); (d) your client lies when he states in the Flyer that he did not bring a claim
for defamation, you included the claim in his Counterclaim; {e) in his May 10, 2018

email, your client's baseless disparaging remarks regarding my conduct as Fox Hill's
_attorney are Libel per se. Please advise whether you will be representing him in that
regard or whether | can communicate with him directly.

. Finally, | am happy to discuss any of the issues presented herein if you would like. You
might like to remind him that he accepted $1,500 for rejeasing all claims against my
client that were or could have been made in this matter including the defamation claim

" he lies about in his Flyer. Further, given his waiver of the attorney client privilege, and



his many lies, and the significant legal fees attributable to his misconduct changes the
analysis of his recent request to efiminate the Confidentiality Provision in his
setilement agreement.

In any event, it is crucial that you inform me if you continue to represent Kardos and
the scope of the representation. If | do not have a response {o this question by 5:00
PM, I will assume you no longer represent him in any capacity and therefore | may
contact him directly.

Thank you,
‘_ Marc Edell

. (908)500-7801

Gaty Wim. Moylen, Esq.
Certified Civil Trial Attorney
90 Mzple Avenue :
Motristown, N.J. 07960

T-973-539-1303 F-973- 285-5594 Cell-201-953-2495
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From: Paul Kardos <pkardos!@vehoo.com> Date: May 12, 2018 at 9:23:24 AM EDT To:
Marion Aaronson <maaronsonl@optimurm.net>, Barbara Applebaum<baumappl{@aol.com>, Ed
Bitner <edbitner@yahoo.com>, David Bishop <eguiconl@aol.com>, Gene Borgna
<eibklb@gmail.com>, ERNEST BLICKERS <ioernie@att.net>, Gil Chesnov
<gehesnov@email.com>, Adela Dubovy <adubovy@yahoo.com>, Sheila Frost
<jsfrost2@verizon.net>, Susan Krugman Flannery <sskf331@aol.com>, Barbara Grimaldi
<sirdavydickens@email.com>, Anne Gallagher <eallaghera@att.net>, Arlene Goodman
<arleoody@aol.com>, Geoffrey Kantor <aeoffkantor@email.com>, LOVERO HELEN <hjl
110@verizon.net>, Kathy Mack <kmackaronil@verizon.net>, Philip Migliorise
<philipm8@verizon.net>, Adrienne Migdale <amigdale@optonline.net>, Ben & Joy Parisi
<parisi7@verizon.net>, Lenny Richman <annlenl@verizon.net>, Munro Ross
<munrol223@email.com>, Rudi Sabatino <rmpasab@optontine net>, Raymond Santoro
<santoro3416@gmail.com>, Ben Suntag <eatnus@email.com>, 1

ESTHER Seltzer <esseltzer@optonline.net>, Weitzman Eleanor <ellienvu64@aol.com>, Joseph
& TJanice Wolkenberg <janjoe2@optonline.net>, Gwen Franklin <gwenfranklin01@email.com>,
Theresa Wisolmerski <twisol2217@jicloud.com>, Raz Burns <razbums@vahoo.com>, Laura
Greenberg <mrssugareeorge@aol.com™>, Lloyd Kishinsky <Ikishinskv(@email.com>, Pat Lucien
<lucien371@email.com>, Cuthbert Twilley <ctwilley00@yahoo.com™>, David Solomon
<dsbraces@email.com>, Walter Reiling <wsrmni@aol.com>, Phil Zwick
<philzwick@email.com>, Frank Galli <eallifoxhills@amail.com>, Fran Zuccarello
<franzuce@gmail.com>, Dot Hamilton <dot hamilton@verizon.net>, Don Bernard
<bsbdpb@yahoo.com>, Phyllis Smith <phyllis.smith.1105@gmail.com>, Lucille Malvano
<wheelsona@optonline.net>, Jerome Jerry' Perniciaro <ipernil@hotmail.com>, SCARLET
PIMPERNEL <condoconnections@hotmail.com>, Lois Sack <thesacks@aol.com>, Don Tanis
<dontanis999@verizon.net>, Nancy Van Court <nlvel2@aol.com> Subject: Litigation ends with
another lie The litigation (Fox Hills vs. Applebaum, Kardos & Rothstein) started with a ie and
now ends with a lie.

Starting Lie: -
Paragraph 4 in the Verified Complaint: -

"During the course of that communication, the Owners conspired to "shoot" a recently elected
member of the Board; currently the Board's president, Ms. Gloria Stahl. Paul Kardos assembled
the Owners, along with others who he believed might be willing to participate in his conspiracy,
and to participate in the actual shooting."

This is pure fantasy. In my mind it is akin to deliberate perjury. But I was unable to claim
defamation due to a legal principle called Litigation Immunity. Deliberate lies are allowed in
legal pleadings.

T would like to know who wrote this lie. T would like to know who on the board, besides
secretary Cohen who signed for it, acquiesced to this lie. If any board member objected to this
lie, I'd like to know who it was. They deserve some kind of "truth" award.



Ending lie:
The board posted a notice dated May 10, 2018 stating:

"We have been advised by Council that the Agreements preclude the Board from providing any
additional information regarding this rnatter".

According to my attorney the contents of the Settlement Agreement are confidential, but
anything else about the litigation can be discussed!!! So the board statement is another lie.

(Questions:

The following questions have nothing to do with settlement agreements and should be able to be
answered by the board:

1. What lessons were learned from this frivolous litigation?
o What was the total cost of the litigation to homeowners?

3. Why is David J. Byme, Esq. no longer the association's attorney? Was it due to the parthe
played in the litigation?

4. Was any attorney or settlement money paid for by insurance?
5. Was any settlement money paid for by David J. Byme, Esq.?

6. Did the attorney encourage the Board to pursue this lawsuit, or did the Board work to
convince him?

7. Attorneys do not come cheap. Would any of the board members like to make a confribution
toward attormey costs of the defendants? How about $500 per director?

8. Do you think the board owes an apology to the defendants for the frivolous litigation and the
false report filed with the police department?

9. Do you think the board owes an apology to the homeowners of Fox Hills?

10. Do you still feel, as was stated at the Townhall Meeting, that the attorney works for all of us
and if a resident (not a board member), had a similar situation, the attorney would defend that
person? If the answer is yes, and the attorney represents all of us, how would the attorney decide
which person to defend? (conflict of interest).

11. Ms. Applebaum would like to know why when the board claimed that a resident cost the
association ~$8,000 (very dubious claim if not another lie}, it was blasted ail over the place,
including every bulletin board in the community and on the round table as you enter the
clubhouse. The board was proud to inform us that it was the residents fault that we had to pay



that money. Now that the association has to pay out due to the Board's poor judgement, we can't
find out how much it cost us.

And related to the settlement agreements; 12. Can we remove the "confidential" part of the
setflement agreements? It's ok with the defendants.



EXHIBIT K



——Original Message---— From: Paul Kardos <pkardos 1@yahoo.com> To:
Barbara <baumappl@aol.com> Sent: Wed, May 9, 2018 6:32 pm Subject: Re:
Document page count Yes, I'm working on some questions, like:

1. To board: Can we remove the "confidential" part of my Setflement Agreement?
It's certainly ok with me.

2. To each director; Do you promise to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing
but the truth?

3. Do you know the difference between right and wrong?

4. Do you think it's right or wrong to accuse someone of a crime that you know the
person didn't commit?

S. Does my statement on the email of Dec. 6 sound at all like "assembling owners
to conspire to murder the board pres."? (paragraph 4 of Verified Complaint) 6.
When I was served with the Verified Complaint on Dec. 6, were you aware of this
statement was in the Verified Complaint?

7. Did you help write the statement in paragraph 4, or acquiesce to it? Did you or
anyone object to it?

8. Do you think you owe me an apology? How about for the false accusation that
you filed in the police report 9. My attorney charged $5000 for his services. Would
-you like to make a contribution toward this cost? How about $500 per director?

Before my questions, someone else should ask if the board will be answering all
questions.

Can you think of any more questions?

Paul



EXHIBIT L



Lynn Meekins

Eromu ' Paul Kardos <pkardos1@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, May 18, 2018 11:25 AM

To: Lynn Meekins

Cex ERNEST BLICKERS :

Subject: Dispute for ADRC - Another Flyer Complaint

Attachments: Flyer_Complaint_DRC_05181 8.paf

To: Community Manager Lynn Meekins

The file attached contains the details of a dispute I have with the Board of
Directors. Please submit this dispute to the ADRC (Alternate Dispute Resolution
Committee, aka DRC) according to Rules & Reguiations Article XVIIL

Best regards,
paul Kardos
Monroe building



Flyer Complaint
Date: May 18, 2018
To: Fox Hills Dispute Resolution Committee (DRC)
Subject: Flysr Not Allowed
FACTS;

1, On Thursdzy morning of May 17,2018, Paul Kardos submitted a fiyer (Appendiz A) to the
Clubhouse for Fridey folder distribution.

3. On Thursday May 17, 2018, at 10:22 AM, Paul Kardos received a phone message from Lynn
Meekins stating,
“regarding your fiver for Friday foldsrs, the board has decided not to post that, unforiunately you are
attacking the board and calling them Rars and that's nof acceptable fo be posied.”

3. The flyer deemed not acceptable had been the subject of email correspondence between Paul
Kardos® attomey Gary Moylen, and the association attorney Marc Edell,

4. Freedom fo speak and write and publish are guaranteed by the NJ Constitution'and are finther
defined in the NJ Supreme Coust Dublirer” decision.

5. Paul Kardos was criticized/attacked in the Board Notice of February 16, 2018 (Appendix B).
ARGUMENT

6 The board decision to disallow flyers that accuse the board of lying violates the NJ

Constingion guarantee that “Every person may frecly speak, write and priblish his sentiments on afl
subjects™.

7. Itis a conflict of interest if the board can disallow flyers that are critical of the themselves.

8. Itis unacceptable for the board to be able to attack and criticize homedwners if homeowners
are not allowed to respond.

REDRESS
9, The written report of the DRC shall recommend the following to the board:
& The Friday Folder Distribution must be available for flyers on any political® subject
always. :
b. A respenseto a board attack-ormisstateinent noust be able to use the same channels of
communication that was used by the board.
Submitted by:
= i f
Paul Kardos
204 Cleveland Lane.

NJ Constitition, Article 1 paragraph 6, “Every persori inay freely speak, write and publish his sentiments on ali
subjects, being responsible for the abuse of that fight. No law shall be passed to restrain or abridge the Hberty of
speech or of the press™

2 Dublirer vs 2000 Linwood Ave, Dec. 3, 2014

3 Political in the opinion of the NJ Suprenie Court is somefhing “related to the managentent and govemance of the
common-interest coramumity.”
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The litigafion (Fox Hills vs. Applebaum, Kardos & Rothstein) started with a lie and now
ends with 3 lie.

Starfing Lie: ,
Paragraph 4 Tn the Verified Complaint
"During the course uf that. communication, the Owners conspired fo “shool” a recently eléciad mernher of the Boarg)
currenifythe Board's president, Ms. Glora Stahl Paul Kardos assembled the Owners, along with others who he
befived might be willing o parficipate in his conspliracy, and i participats In the actus! shoafing.”
This is pure famiasy. in my mind i is akin to deliberate perjury. BUiiwas tunabie fo sustain a claim for
defamation due 1o & legal principle called Lifigafion Immunity. Deliberate lies are aliowed in legal
pleadgs. |
| would Tike to know who wrots this lie, | would ke to know who on the board, besides Secretary
Cohen who signed for i, acauiesced to this fle. if any board member abjected o this lie, I'd ke to
know who it was. They should be commended for knowing it's wronig to faisely accuse someonz of a2
crime.

Ending lie':
The board posted a nofice dated May 10, 2018 staiing:
"Ale have been advised by Council fiat the Agreements preciude the Board fram providing eny addiffonal information
rfegarding this matter”.
Accarding to my attomney the conients of the Setflement Agreement are confidential, BUT anything
else about the fifigation can be discussedlll

Questions:

The following questions have nafhing to do with setflement agreemenis and should be ahle {o be
answered by the board:

What lessons were leamed Trom this frivelous litigation’s

What was the total cost of the litigation 1o homeowners?

Why is David J. Byrne, Esq. no longer the association's aftomey?

Was any attomey ot seiflement meney paid for by insurance?

Was ahy setlement money paid for by David J. Byrne, Esq.?

id the atiormey encourage the Board fo pursue this fawsuli, or did the Beard convince him?
Attorneys do not come cheap. Would any of ihe.board members comtribute toward atiomey
costs of the defendants? How about $500 per director?

Do you think the board owes an apology to the defendants for the frivolous [iigation and the
false report filed with the police depariment?

9. Do you think the hoard owes an apology to the homeowners of Fox Hills?

N R S

Paui Kardos

Ve hoard steternent is not tme. f the board knew Tt wesn't true, and they mest have known, thon i£'s 8 lie. M they thought it was
true bud i wasa’t, then its just a false statment. vt

B/ATM8

Page 2 of 3



Appendix B

Motice

dpdate on Assgciation’s Complaint Against 3 Homeowners

February 16, 2018

Yesterday, Judge Robert 1 Brennan rejected the Association’s
attempt to subject the 3 homeowners to restraints. He also
granted motions to dismiss for 2 of the 3 homeowners,

W;hﬂe the Board is disappointed in these rulings, it stands by its
decision to file this Complaint, as an attempt to discourage future -
instances of cyber-harassment and bullying in our community.

The language used in the chain of emalls by the 3 hemeowners,
included the language, “shoot her” and “If I could get away with it,
1’d buy a gun and pull the trigger.” According to one of the 3
homeowners, Judge Brennan did acknowledge that this language
was inappropriate, well out-of-bounds and terribly in bad taste.

The Board agrees with the Judge, espedially in light of
Wednesday's mass shooting in F%encia the latest in a rash of
shootings in recent. years.

We realize that this compiaint will result in an extra legal costfor
the Association. The Board believes this legal cost renreseni: a

necessary price to pay for pro-actively tryj .
megwners from harassment and fear. We should keep in mind

ChithIs ‘extra legal cost 15 a direct result of the irresponsible

behavior of the 3 homeowners.

ot

e e A TSy o T e

Your Board of Directofrs
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EXHIBIT M



Gary Moylen May 22, 2018

Re: Fox Hill v. Paul Kardos

Gary: | am writing with paragraphs 1 and 6 of your May 16, 2018 email:
The MUTUAL RELEASE states in pertinent part:

4. Mutual Release of the Association and the Owner. Except for the obligations and rights
expressly set forth elsewhere herein, the ... Owner [Kardos] hereby unconditionally and
irrevocably remise [give up, surrender relinquish], release, forever discharge ...past, present
and future directors, officers {whether acting in such capacity or individually)..attorneys...
acting or purporting to act for them [“the Association”] or on their behalf {collectively, the
"Releasees"), from any and all claims, ...costs, losses, expenses, ...accounts,
reckonings...charges, complaints, controversies, disputes, ... promises, omissions, duties,
agreements, rights, and any and all demands, obligations and liabilities, of whatever kind or
character, direct or indirect, whether known or unknown or capable of being known up until
the Effective Date, arising at law or in equity, by right of action or otherwise, including, but not
fimited to facts that arose from or are related to the facts and circumstances giving rise to
and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the Counterclaim.

In short, Kardos REMISES (relinquishes) any rights, of whatever kind or character, he would
otherwise have: (1) to make claims, charges, complaints of any kind; (2) attempts to create
controversies and disputes; (3) demands information and answers to questions; and (4)
assertions the Board and Attorney violated its duties and obligation. Allrelating to directly or
indirectly, to facts that arose from or are related to the facts and circumstances giving rise to
and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint and/or the Counterclaim.

His “Flyer”: (1) makes claims, and charges: (2) creates controversies and disputes; (3} demands
information and answers to questions; and (4) asserts the Board and Attorney viclated its
duties and obligation. All relating to directly or indirectly, to facts that arose from or are related
to the facts and circumstances giving rise to and/or being part of the Litigation, the Complaint
and/or the Counterclaim.

Kardos’ Countercdlaim:

FIRST COUNT

15. Due to his ownership of a condominium in the Fox Hill project, Paul Kardos is automatically
a member of the Fox Hill Condominium Association, and as such, he has standing to assert the
rights and claims set forth in this Counterclaim.



16. Fox Hills has utilized the assets of the condominium association to pay the legal fees of
counsel who has prepared and filed the within Verified Complaint and Order to Show cause,
and which represents Fox Hills in the within litigation.

17. The Verified Complaint filed in this matter is frivolous on its face, and consists of nothing
more than frivolous litigation which, among other things, improperly asserts the rights of a
third person not made a party to this action, fails to join an indispensable party, fails to
articulate the grounds necessary for the issuance of injunctive relief and which fails to even
properly state a cause of action upon which relief can be granted.

18. The Plaintiff s payment of counsel fees in this matter constitutes a waste of the
Association's funds in favor of one member of the Association, and discriminates against other
members of the Association, in violation of Fox Hills fiduciary duties and its responsibilities
created by the Master Deed and by the law of the State of New Jersey,

SECOND COUNT

20. Paul Kardos repeats and reiterates the allegations of the First Count of the Counterclaim as
if the same were set forth at length herein.

21. Fox Hills through its counsel has falsely accused Paul Kardos, among others, of a crime of
conspiracy to commit murder.

22. The aforesaid allegations are false, and were known to be false at the time they were made
and are libelous per se.

23. The aforesaid false allegations were made with a malicious intent to damage the good
reputation of Paul Kardos, and to hold him in contempt as a criminal.

On May 18, 2018 your client filed a Complaint with the Fox Hills Alternate Dispute Resolution
Committee relating to Association’s decision not to post the “Flyer”. This constitutes a further
breach of the CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT AGREEM ENT.

Considering the above, the Association has no choice but to file Complaint in the State Court for
his numerous breaches and defamation.

Marc Edell



